
RFP 16-06 Building Automation Systems (BAS) 

Various questions submitted by vendors 

  Posted 10/07/16   
1. Santa Rosa has decided to award two separate entities portions of the five year contract, is it 
desired to award an Automation Integration Contractor all of the upper level product selection, 
design, programming, troubleshooting and installation assistance, then award an EC (Electrical 
Contractor) all of the electrical hardware installation, including wiring, upgrade equipment, analog 
devices, etc? I am trying to understand whether the project entails dual roles for both contractors or 
split responsibilities. 

RESPONSE: 

The AIC will be responsible for sub-contracting electrical installation services as required to install a 
complete and functional controls system. A separate contract will not be issued by the District for 
electrical installation requirements in regards to the controls system installation. Electrical 
contractors utilized as sub-contractors for controls installation purposes shall be licensed EC 
Electrical Contractors in the State of Florida. 

2. Can you give precise manufacturer / model of DDC controllers used on the current upgraded 
systems? I want to verify current BACnet Ethernet or BACnet IP capabilities.  

RESPONSE: 

Automated Logic 
LGR-25, SE6104, SE6104a, SE6166, ZN551 
Johnson Controls 
MS-NCE25, MS-NCE2566-0, MS-FEC2611-0, MS-FEC1611-0, MS-NAE5510-2 
Siemens 
PXC Modular, PXC Compact, PTEC 
Trane 
Tracer SC, UC 400, UC 600 
 
3. Has any existing (BACnet over RS485) equipment been added to BACnet Ethernet (or IP) through 
use of protocol conversion? 

RESPONSE: No. 

4. Is there a specific hardware vendor or manufacturer product required or desired to be utilized for 
hardware selection? If so, can you provide the vendor/manufacturer and desired product to be 
utilized. 

RESPONSE: No. 

5. Can you provide the sample bid format/documentation? 

RESPONSE: 

Refer to the end of the RFP for Proposal Form, and to the Scope of Services section of the RFP as 
referenced on the Proposal Form for required format and documentation. 



6.  Will there be a scope of work provided for the sample project that we are to quote.  I see the 
drawings and sequence but it doesn’t tell if there is 1 or many of each kind of unit.  Additional, will 
this be tied into an existing front end software or should we provide that providing a new front end 
for the future.  Are CAD floorplans available of the school for graphics generation on the front 
end?  Please expand on what wiring the District requires to be in conduit.  How many simultaneous 
users are required for the front end software? 

 RESPONSE: 

The sample project pricing shall include pricing for 66 split system units and 1 outside air unit. No 
existing front end will be integrated. Provide as part of the sample project pricing the cost for 
providing a front end to serve the facility. CADD floor plans are (and will be for future projects) 
available for generating front end graphics. As part of the pricing for the sample project, include the 
cost for graphics package generation but graphics package will not be required to be submitted. All 
control wiring shall be in conduit. Control wiring routed in occupied areas with masonry walls may 
be routed in wire mold (i.e., wiring to thermostats). All other control wiring shall be routed concealed 
in non-masonry walls. 

7. Under Item K, I understand and appreciate what the District is looking for on pricing and a 
discount.  I fully support this approach and don’t mind providing the list of products.  However, I 
currently have approximately 50,000 products available for use in a control system installation and 
some of these will come from other manufacturers besides Schneider Electric.  For instance, relays 
are usually from Functional Devices and many sensors come from Kele or BAPI.  I can provide those 
lists as well but the amount of data will be enormous.  Additionally, when we price jobs, I don’t do a 
detailed design for pricing.  We price it to cover cost then select the specific relay or sensor during 
design after we have the job.  I may put $25 dollars in for a relay but not know exactly which relay 
will be used.  It is the risk that we take such that we don’t spend excess labor on jobs where we are 
not the successful bidder.  Also, I can give you a list containing the thousands of parts and because 
of a special need at some point in the future, one part was not on the list and it might be from a 
manufacturer that we have never done business with so we don’t have an established pricing 
structure which would keep me from providing a standard structure to The District.   

 With all that said, I am not sure that I am looking for an answer at this point but wanted to get you all 
thinking about how a pricing structure would work.  We will use less than 200 parts total on 98% of 
the control system so I will propose a methodology that covers it and if I make it to the interview 
stage, we can discuss further.  I would like to not provide hard copy of the list of parts and only 
provide it as an Exhibit on the CD and thumb drives.  Is that acceptable? 

 RESPONSE: 

Refer to Tab K of the Scope of Services section of the RFP for pricing requirements. 

8.  Under item K, you do not specifically ask for labor rates of the people required for completing a 
control system install.  Am I to suppose that you want this broken out by labor class and labor rates 
provided? 

RESPONSE: 

Yes, including sub-contractor costs. 

 



9.  We typically install LV wiring as plenum rated not in conduit above ceilings and in walls.  We will 
install conduit will mechanical rooms and other areas where wiring would be exposed.  This is 
especially true in retrofit situations such as many of your projects.  Is this acceptable?  Please 
clarify any expectations over and above code requirements for wiring installation. 

RESPONSE: 

Refer to responses to RFI’s 6 and 17. 

10. Will the new low voltage control and power wiring above concealed , accessible ceilings at SS 
Dixon be allowed to be run with plenum rated cable neatly supported to the building structure? 

RESPONSE: 

No. Refer to responses to RFI’s 6, 9, and 17. 

11. If the majority of outside air ductwork on Heat Pumps per the site visit at SS Dixon only have a 
balancing damper do we still need to provide an actuator to open/close this damper per the control 
diagram/sequence on MSK-1? 

RESPONSE: 

Yes, include in the sample project pricing the cost for installing motorized dampers in the outside air 
duct to facilitate closing outside air dampers during scheduled unoccupied periods. Also, include as 
part of the sequence de-activating the outside air unit during unoccupied periods and interlocking 
exhaust fans with the outside air unit. Include in the sample project pricing the cost for interlocking 
10 exhaust fans. 

12. Will the heat pump in Bldg 3 (PE) be required to be part of the DDC controls pricing? 

RESPONSE: 

No. 

13. Can you please verify the quantity of heat pumps and outside air units (OAU) to be included in 
the DDC controls pricing? 

RESPONSE: 

Refer to responses to RFI 6. 

14. Since the heat pumps and outside air unit are installed and operating, do we need to provide the 
fire stats in the ductwork per the sequence? 

RESPONSE: 

For pricing of the sample project, yes, include the cost for fire stats. 

15. Will the existing conventional thermostat locations be the required locations for the new DDC 
thermostats? 

RESPONSE: 

Yes. 



16. Will graphics be required on a remote graphical workstation as part of the DDC pricing for this 
seed project? 

RESPONSE: 

No. 

17. Will you please provide a copy of Division 26 requirements as listed in the control sequence of 
operation?  Please see excerpt from the RFP below.  

 

RESPONSE: 

The relevant portion of the referenced Division 26 specification requires all control wiring to be 
routed in conduits per the NEX requirements for 120V circuits. Conduit shall be metallic (EMT). 

18. Regarding Tab K Pricing, will you please provide an example of how the pricing should be 
formatted?  Please see excerpt from the RFP below.   

 

RESPONSE: 

No example of formatting is available. Provide required information as referenced. 

 

 


